Depondgy bie

AGENDA i e Regional
Lower Cape Fear Water & Sewer Authority
1107 New Pointe Boulevard, Suite # 17, Leland, North Carolina
9:00 a.m., — Regular Monthly Board Meeting
December 14, 2020

MEETING CALL TO ORDER: Chairman Milliken

INVOCATION
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA
C1 - Minutes of Regular Board Meeting November 9th, 2020
C2 - Kings Biuff Monthly Operations and Maintenance Report
C3 - Bladen Biuffs Monthly Operations and Maintenance Reports
C4-Approval of the Authority’s 2021 Regular Schedule Meetings Calendar

PUBLIC HEARING
The Board of Directors of the Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority (LCFWASA) hear and

receive public comments regarding a proposed water rate increase from .2717 to .35 per 1,000 gallons
for Fiscal Year 2021. (Executive Director PowerPoint Presentation)

NEW BUSINESS
NB1 - Presentation of Annual Audit Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020
NB2- Election of Authority’s Board of Directors Officers for the Term of January 1, 2021 until

December 31, 2021
ENGINEER’S COMMENTS
ATTORNEY COMMENTS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT
EDRI1 - Comments on Customers® Water Usage and Raw Water Revenue for Fiscal Year to Date
Ending November 30th, 2020
EDR2- Proposed Budget Calendar
PUBLIC COMMENT
CLOSED SESSION

ADJOURNMENT

The next board meeting of the Lower Cape Fear Water & Sewer Authority is scheduled for Monday, January11th at 9:00 a.m. in the Authority’s
office located at 1107 New Pointe Boulevard, Suite 17, Leland, North Carolina

1107 New Pointe Bivd, Suite 17
Leland, North Carolina 28451

phn 910.383.1919 fax 910.383.1%49
www. lcfwasa.org

Water is Our Business




Item C1
Lower Cape Fear Water & Sewer Authority em

Regular Board Meeting Minutes
November 9, 2020

Chairman Milliken called to order the Authority meeting scheduled on November 9, 2020 at 9:00 a.m. and welcomed
everyone present. The meeting was held at the Authority’s office located at 1107 New Pointe Boulevard, Suite 17,
Leland, North Carolina. Director Leonard gave the invocation.

Roli Call by Chairman Milliken:

Present: Norwood Blanchard, Trent Burroughs, Wayne Edge, Harry Knight, Patricia Kusek, Al
Leonard, William Milliken, Jackie Newton, Charlie Rivenbark, Phil Norris, William Sue, and Frank Williams

Present by Internet or Telephone: Bill Saffo and Patrick DeVane
Absent: none

Staff: Tim H. Holloman, Executive Director; Matthew Nichols, General Counsel; Tony Boahn P.E., McKim &
Creed, and Allison Covington, Financial Administration Assistant

Guests Present: Rick Benton

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Director Knight led the Pledge of Allegiance.

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA
C1 - Minutes of Regular Board Meeting October 12th, 2020
C2 - Kings Bluff Monthly Operations and Maintenance Report

C3 - Bladen Bluffs Monthly Operations and Maintenance Reports
C4- Budget Amendment #3

Motion: Director Burroughs MOVED; seconded by Director Williams, approval of the Consent Agenda Items
as presented. Upon roll call vote, the MOTION CARRIED.

g
S

Against | Abstained | Absent

Norwood Blanchard
Trent Burroughs
Wayne Edge
Patrick DeVane
Harry Knight
Patricia Kusek

Al Leonard
Jackie Newton
Phil Norris

Al Milliken
Charlie Rivenbark
Bill Saffo

Bill Sue

Frank Williams

D |5 e ] <l ¢ e ¢ 3¢ 3¢ ¢ < |

>
o
o
=

Board Mecting - 11972020

op
Page 1 c1- 1



Item C1

OLD BUSINESS

OB-1 Resolution Committing the Authority to Working with Wilmington Business Development
and Pender County to Investigate the Possibility of Working on a Joint Project to Pretreat
Wastewater in the Pender County Industrial Park

Rick Benton of Wilmington Business Development (WBD) stated that was no new information to
report, and requested the Boards consideration of the original proposed plan to collaborate with Pender
County to evaluate the concept of a Pretreatment Facility at Pender Commerce Park. Director Newton
stated, as a representative of the Pender County Board, Pender County is feels that Pender County and
LCFWASA would benefit from the collaboration consideration. Director Newton felt the potential
increase in job opportunities was validation for consideration. Director Williams supported Director
Newton’s position, but felt that there should be a wording change in the Resolution that the LCFWASA
commit to “exploring” the concept, instead of committing to the concept of the Pretreatment Facility.

Maotion: Director Williams MOVED, seconded by Director Blanchard, approval of the Committing the Authority
to exploring Working with Wilmington Business Development and Pender County to Investigate the
Possibility of Working on a Joint Project to Pretreat Wastewater in the Pender County Industrial Park .
Upon roll call vote, the MOTION CARRIED.

Apainst | Abstained | Absent

1]
o
=

Norwood Blanchard
Trent Burroughs
Wayne Edge
Patrick DeVane
Harry Knight
Patricia Kusek

Al Leonard

Jackie Newton
Phil Norris

Al Milliken
Charlie Rivenbark
Bill Saffo

Bill Sue

Frank Williams

NS AP EH EA B E A P PP P

NEW BUSINESS

NB1- Resolution Accepting the Lower Cape Fear Water & Sewer Authority Bladen Bluffs
Regional Raw Water Supply Facilities FY 2019-2020 Annual Inspection Report (Tony Boahn,
P.E. McKim & Creed)

Tony Boahn presented updates to the Board of the Bladen Bluffs’ Regional Surface Water Treatment
Facilities and projects. The Cape Fear River Bank Restoration is complete. The deck and hand rails on
the walkway to intake have been recently replaced. He also stated that erosion was found in the
Restoration project and the Contractor has been notified to reseed the area. The Filter Pipe and Valve
Gallery Structure walls have minor leaks and are under observation. The GAC Vessels are leaking and
showing same corrosion and the Mag Meter display needs a cover. These items are also under
observation and very minor.

Roard Meeting - 11 /972020

Page 2 ' C1-2



item C1

Motion: Director Edge MOVED,; seconded by Director Kusek, approval of the Resolution Accepting the Lower

Cape Fear Water & Sewer Authority Bladen Bluffs Regional Raw Water Supply Facilities FY 2019-

2020 Annual Inspection Report. Upon roll call vote, the MOTION CARRIED,

NB 2- Adopt a Public Hearing Date for Proposed Raw Water Rate Increases

g
=

Against |

Norwood Blanchard

Abstained

Absent

Trent Burroughs

Wayne Edge

Patrick DeVane

Harry Knight

Patricia Kusek

Al Leonard

Jackie Newton

Phil Norris

Al Milliken

Charlie Rivenbark

Bill Saffo

Bill Sue

Frank Williams

D[ |14 5 e ¢ 5 e ¢3¢ ¢ <]

=

Executive Director Holloman requested to set a Public Hearing Date for proposed rate increases in the

Raw Water Rates for December 14, 2020.

Motion: Director Kusek MOVED;, seconded by Director Blanchard, approval of the Adoption of a Public
Hearing Date for Proposed Raw Water Rate Increases. Upon roll call vote, the MOTION CARRIED.

T}
O
=

Against

Norwood Blanchard

Abstained

Absent

Trent Burroughs

Wayne Edge

Patrick DeVane

Harry Knight

Patricia Kusek

Al Leonard

Jackie Newton

Phil Norris

Al Milliken

Charlie Rivenbark

Bill Saffo

Bill Sue

Frank Wiliiams

IR E R R PP P P PR PN PP Y

N

ENGINEER’S COMMENTS

Tony Boahn reported completion of the Raw Water Main Easement Research project. Research was
done on property ownership and graphical plots. A total of nine easements were found, seven in
Brunswick County and two in New Hanover County. All easements, with the exception of DuPont,

have a width of 75 feet. DuPont is only 40 feet and would require additional easement in order to create

another pipeline.

Board Mecting - 11/9/2020

Page 3

C1-3



Item C1

ATTORNEY COMMENTS

Attorney Nichols reported that a letter was sent via regular mail and certified to the owner of the
property located in. It was received on October 26™ and Chairman Milliken recommended that a
reminder letter be sent in January if there is no response.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT
EDRI — Comments on Customers’ Water Usage and Raw Water Revenue for Fiscal Year

to Date Ending October 31, 2020
Executive Director Holloman reported that during the Month of October 2020, Brunswick

County, and CPFUA’s usage fell slightly below projection for the month, but expected to
increase in November. Pender County is slightly below projections, but is working to increases
usage. He states that projected revenue for the year is below $40,000 projections, and
suggested revisiting in a few months financing, instead of purchasing the truck scheduled to
acquire this fiscal year.

EDR2- Quarterly Report

Executive Director Holloman reported that expenses are within projected amounts, and Sales Tax refund revenue was
received at 120% of projected amount.

DIRECTOR’S COMMENTS AND/OR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
None

PUBLIC COMMENT
None

ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business, Chairman Milliken adjourned the meeting at 9:57 a.m.

Respectfully Submitted:

By ol

Charlie Rivenbark, Secretary

Cl1-4



Item C2

COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK
PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT
Kings Bluff Pump Station

246 Private Road
Riegelwood, NC 28456
(910) 655-4799 Office
(910) 655-4798 FAX

TO: Tim Holloman
FROM: Jack Hogan
DATE: 12/1/2020

SUBJECT: Monthly maintenance report for November 2020

Mr. Holloman,

The Maintenance and Operations of the king's bluff facility for the
month of November was performed as prescribed in the station SOP'S and other items
are as follows.

The diesel drive booster pumps along with the standby SCADA generator located at
the raw tank and the SCADA generator located at INVISTA / CFPUA vaults off HWY
421 were ran and tested weekly and verified standby ready.

KB personnel completed all locates issued by the 811 system.

KB personnel worked with Brunswick Co. Y&C dept. on in ground power line feeding
power to the Brunswick vault from the raw tank that was cut by contractor.

KB personnel installed new turbidity meter at station and Brunswick Co. I&C dept ran
power to it and calibrated it for operation.

KB personnel replaced battery charger on # 2 booster pump located at raw tank.
KB personnel made another run on replacing deck boards on the walkway to the river.

KB personnel went to the Peterson farm property and moved a storage shed that was
on the right of way to a new location off of the right of way and placed where
landowner specified and also completed demolition, capping and removal of pump
equipment on a ground well that was at the same location by the request of Director
Holloman. All debris was removed, pump and tank were left with fandowner.

KB personnel are currently cleaning and flushing the engine cooling system on # 2 EMD

generator and prepping engine for the installation of 2 new coolant pumps to try and
resolve engine over heating issue as was done on # 1 EMD engine with the same issues.

c2-1



Item C2

The 2 coolant pumps currently on the # 2 EMD have been inspected and found to be
failing and leaking.

Thank You,

Jack Hogan

C2-2



Item C4

LOWER CAPE FEAR
WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY

2021 REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE

Regular Board Meeting Dates and Times
9:00 a.m. — Monday, January 11
9.00 a.m. — Monday, February 8
9:00 a.m. — Monday, March 8
9:00 a.m. — Monday, April 12
9:00 a.m. — Monday, May 10
9:00 a.m. — Monday, June 14
9:00 a.m. — Monday, July 12
9:00 a.m. — Monday, August 9
9:00 a.m. — Monday, September 13
9:00 a.m. — Monday, October 11
9:00 a.m. — Monday, November 8

9:00 a.m. — Monday, December 13

Meetings are held at the Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority’s
office located at 1107 New Pointe Bivd., Suite 17, Leland, NC.

C4-1



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
LOWER CAPE FEAR WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
PROPOSED WATER RATE INCREASE

DATE: Monday, December 14, 2020, at 9:00 a.m.

The Board of Directors of the Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority (LCFWASA) will
hold a public hearing on Monday, December 14, 2020, beginning at 9:00 a.m. in the LCFWASA
offices located at 1107 New Pointe Blvd., Suite 17, Leland, NC 28451, to hear public comments
regarding a proposed water rate increase. Due to emergency restrictions pertaining to COVID-
19, in-person public attendance is prohibited. The public hearing will be simultaneously
streamed live online and may be viewed on LCFWASA’s Facebook Page or via the Webex link

on LCFWASA’s website: www.lcfwasa.orp.

To speak during the public hearing, please access the public hearing via the Webex link on

LCFWASA’s website: www.lcfwasa.org. Public comments on the proposed water rate increase

can be submitted via email to admin@lcfwasa.org and will be accepted up to 24 hours after the
public hearing is closed. Public comments submitted by 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, December 10,
2020, will be read into the record at the public hearing. A copy of the proposed water rate

increase and related documentation is available for public inspection at the LCFWASA offices

located at 1107 New Pointe Blvd., Suite 17, Leland, NC 28451 and online at www.Icfwasa.org.



NEW BUSINESS (NB-1) Lower Cape Fear Water & Sewer

Authority

AGENDA ITEM

To: CHAIRMAN MILLIKEN AND BOARD MEMBERS

From: TIM H. HOLLOMAN, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Date: 12/14/2020

Re: Presentation of Annual Audit Report for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2020

(Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams $ Co., P.A.)

Reviewed and Approved as to form: MATTHEW A. NICHOLS, AUTHORITY ATTORNEY

Background: An annual audit is required for Lower Cape Fear Water Authority and a
representative from the Authority's auditor, Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A,,
will present the Annual Financial Report for the Year Ended June 30, 2020.

The complete report is also available for members as a hard copy or PDF file upon
request.

Action Requested: For information purposes only



item NB1

Lower Cape Fear Water and
Sewer Authority

Audit Presentation

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020




Item NB1

wer Authority

Tower Cape Fear Water and Se
Board Meeting

e Presentation of Audit Results

e [ General Comments

e II.  Required Communications
e [II.  Audit Results

e IV. Questions and Comment

e V. Close

NB1- 2



Item NB1

ower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority

Required Communications

Requirement

1 Responsibilities Under Generally Accepted Auditing Standards,
Government Auditing Standards, OMB Uniform Guidance, and
the State Single Audit Implementation Act.

Design the audit to provide reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are free of material error and in compliance with
government regulations.

Perform all planned procedures and have complete access to both
management and required information.

Communicate significant deficiencies in the internal control.

Results

* Accomplished. No material error
noted.

* Completed. Our work was not

limited in any way.

*None.

NBt- 3



ftem NBA1

Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority

Required Communications (continued)

Requirement

2 Adoption or Change in Accounting Policies

Communicate the initial adoption of or a change in an accounting ¢
principle which had or is expected to have a significant effect on
the financial statements.

3 Management Judgment and Accounting Estimates

Assess methodologies used and basis of evidence for matters
requiring judgments and estimates.

4 Significant Audit Adjustments or Unrecorded
Differences

Communicate significant recorded and unrecorded differences.

Results

None noted.

Methodologies used and evidence
considered appear to have led to
reasonable amounts being included in the
financial statements.

None out of the normal course.

NB1- 4



item NB1

ower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority
Required Communications (continued)

Requirement Results

5 Disagreements with Management

Communicate any disagreements on financial or ¢ None.
reporting matters that, if not satisfactorily resolved,
would cause a modification of our report.

6 Consultation with Other Accountants

Communicate consultation that took place € None noted.
with other accountants.

7 Prior to Retention Issues

Communicate any major issues that management ¢ None.
discussed with the auditor in connection with the

retention of the auditor, including the application of

accounting principles and auditing standards.

NB1- §



Item NB1

s

- Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority
Required Communications (continued)

Requirement Results

8 Significant Difficulties

Any serious difficulties the auditor encountered in

dealing with management such as unreasonable

delays in providing needed information, ¢ None noted.
unreasonable timetable set by management, or

unavailability of client personnel.

9 Irregularities and Illegal Acts
Communicate the existence of any material

irregularities and/ or illegal acts determined during
the audit. € None noted.

NBt- 6



item NB1

Dear Board Members:

Below is a summarization of some of the key items in the audit report. 2020
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,533,264
Total Revenues (Including Operating and Nonoperating) $ 5,661,819
Total Expenditures (Including Operating and Nonoperating) s 5,163,491
Net Change for year $ 496,603
Net position, beginning of year s 23,529,079
Net position, end of year S 24,024,407

NB1- 7



itemn NB1

Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority

Analysis of Revenue by Year

4,228,333 4,331,051 436,315
4500000 4,101,640
4000000
3500000
3000000 2,399,425 2,481,195
2500000
1,713, fm
2000000
1,325,5

1500000 1,130,
1000000

500000

o}
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

B Other Revenues  ® Charges For Services

NB1- 8



tem NB1

- Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority

Analysis of Net Assets By Year

25000000
21,130,516
~©M©n_.®.wk_.o uwuwwqumq -@.mmmumwm NO‘OWN.OA.O ’
20000000
15000000
10000000
3
5000000 2,908 2,43 3,476, 2,893,8
0
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
W Unrestricted Net Assets ® Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

NB1- 9




Thank You for the
Opportunity to Work
With You!

NB1- 10



ftem NB1

draft

LOWER CAPE FEAR WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

NB1 - 11



draft

item NB1

LOWER CAPE FEAR WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY

Wayne Edge
William A. Milliken, Jr.
Trent Burroughs
Charlie Rivenbark
Norwood Blanchard
Larry Johnson

Al Leonard

Jackie Newton

Phil Norris

Bill Saffo

Larry Sneeden
William Sue

Frank Williams

Rob Zapple

Don Betz

Amy Scruggs

June 30, 2020

Chairman
Vice-Chairman
Secretary
Treasurer
Asst. Treasurer
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director

Director

Executive Director

Administrative Assistant

Bladen County
Brunswick County
Columbus County
City of Wilmington
Pender County
Bladen County
Columbus County
Pender County
Brunswick County
City of Wilmington
New Hanover County
Brunswick County
Brunswick County

New Hanover County

NB1 - 12



item NB1

I a I tOWER CAPE FEAR WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY

TABLE OF CONTENTS
June 30, 2020

Government-wide Financial Statements:

Statement of Fund Net Position - Proprietary Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes

in Fund Net Position - Proprietary Fund
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements

Required Supplemental Financial Data:

Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the
Net Pension Liability - LGERS

Schedule of Contributions - LGERS

Supplementary Information:

Enterprise Operating Fund -
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures -
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Renewal and Replacement Fund -
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures -
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Right of Way Fund -
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures -
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

System Development Charge Fund -
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures -
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Financial Section: Page(s)
Independent Auditor’s Report 1-3
Management's Discussion and Analysis 4-8

Exhibit Basic Financial Statements:

10

11-12

13-25

26

27

28-29

30

31

32

NB1- 13



ftem NB1

d ra I t Enterprise Capital Project Fund - 33

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures -
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Compliance Section:

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and 34-35
on Compliance and Other matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements performed in Accordance With
Government Auditing Standards

Schedule of Findings and Responses 36-38

NB1 - 14



Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A.
4024 Oleander Drive Suite 3

Wilmington, North Carolina 28403
Telephone (910} 791-4872

Fax (910) 395-4872

Ind tent Auditor’s R

To the Chairman of the Board

and Members of the Board of Directors
Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority
Leland, North Carolina

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer
Authority, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

ltem NB1

NB1 - 15



item NB1

draft

Opinions

In our opinien, based on our audit, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority as
of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management's Discussion and Analysis and the Local Government Employees’ Retirement System’s
Schedules of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and Contributions be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a required part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s response to cur inquiries, the basis financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinicen or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpese of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the basic financial statements of the Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer
Authority. The individual fund statements and budgetary schedules are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The individual fund statements and budgetary schedules are the responsibility of management and
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures
performed as described above, the individual fund statements and budgetary schedules are fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

NB1 - 16



tem NB1

draft

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 28,
2020 on our consideration of Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority’s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants agreements, and other matters. The purpose of the report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reportingand compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Thoopoon, Price, Seott, Adame & (Jo., Pt
Wilmington, North Carelina
October 28, 2020

NB1 - 17



draft

As management of the Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority (the "Authority"), we offer readers of the Lower Cape
Fear Water and Sewer Authority's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the
Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. We encourage readers to read the
information presented here in cenjunction with additional information that we have furnished in the Authority's financial
statements, which follow this narrative.

Management's Discussion and Analysis

item NB1

The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority exceeded its
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the fiscal year by $24,024,407 (net position),

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority reported ending fund

Financial Highlights
L
b The Authority's total net position increased by $495,328.
@
balances as follows:
Renewal and Replacement Fund
Right of Way Fund
System Development Charge Fund
Enterprise Capital Project Fund
L

$
$
$
$

40,683
281,005

14

793,983

The Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority's total debt decreased by $774,765 during the current fiscal year

due to normal principal payments.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The Authority's primary mission is to provide raw water services to various customers in the Lower Cape Fear region. The
Authority does not provide other general purpose government services or programs. As such, the Authority is considered
to be, and therefore presents the Authority's financial report, as a stand-alone enterprise fund.

Required Components of Annual Financial Report

Figure 1

Management’s

Discussion and Analysis

Basic

Financial Statements

Government-wide

Financial Statements

Fund

Financial Statements

Summary

Notes to the

Financial Statements

Detail

NB1- 18



item NB1

gn and Analysis
ar Whiter and Sewer Authornity

cia tements

The first three documents (Exhibits A, B, and C) are the basic financial statements. They provide both short and long-
term information concerning the Authority's financial status. The next section is the notes that provide a narrative and
data explanation regarding selected financial statement presentations. The next five documents (Schedules 1-5) are
supplemental information that focus on individual funds: one enterprise fund and four project funds.

Government-Wide Financials Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Authority's
finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The government-wide statements provide
short and long-term information about the Authority's financial status as a whole.

The government-wide statements report the Authority's net position and how it has changed. Net position is the
difference between the Authority's assets and deferred outflows of resources and total liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources. Measuring net position is one way to gauge the Authority's financial condition.

The government-wide statements show business-type activities, the only type of activities the Authority has. Business-
type activities are those that the Authority charges customers to provide. These include water services offered by the
Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the Authority's most significant activities. A fund is a
grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. The Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority, like all over governmental entities in North
Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-compliance) with finance-related legal
requirements, such as the General Statutes or the Authority’s budget ordinance. All of the funds of the Lower Cape Fear
Water and Sewer Authority are proprietary funds.

Proprietary Funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority uses enterprise funds to account
for its water activity.

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of
the data provided in the financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found following Exhibit C of this
report.

Other Information. [n addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report includes certain

required supplementary information concerning Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority's progress in funding its
obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees.

NB1- 19



ftem NB1

n and Analysis
ter and Sewer Authority

Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority’s Net Position

Figure 2
Business-Type Activities
2020 2019
Assets:
Current and other assets $ 3,083,800 $ 3,842,229
Capital assets 43,177,245 42,874,135
Total assets 46,261,045 46,716,364
Deferred outflows of resources 41,588 49,621
Liabilities:
Current liabilities 1,985.325 2,473,398
Long-term liabilities 20,292,901 20,763,417
Total liabilities 22,278,226 23,236,815
Deferred inflows of resources - 91
Net position:
Net investment in
capital assets 21,130,516 20,052,640
Unrestricted 2,893,891 3,476,439
Total net position $ 24,024,407 $ 23,525,079

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as one useful indicator of the Authority's financial condition. The assets
and deferred outflows of resources of the Authority exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by $24,024,407 as of June 30,
2020. The Authority’s net position increased by $495,328 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. However, the largest
portion of net position $21,130,516 (88%) reflects the Authority's net investment in capital assets {e.g. land, buildings,
machinery and equipment). The Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority uses these capital assets to provide services
to customers; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the Authority's net investment in
capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the resources needed to repay that debt must be provided by
other sources since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. The remaining balance of
$2,893,891(12%) is unrestricted.

Several particular aspects of the Authority's financial operations positively influenced the total net position:

@ Increase in charges for services.

NB1- 20



ftem NB1

gon and Analysis
ter and Sewer Authoriy

Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority's Changes in Net Position

Figure 3
Business-Type Activities
2020 2019
Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 4336315 $ 4,331,051
Other operating 1,329 1,687
Investment earnings 8,482 4,982
Other non-operating 1,315,693 1,124,211
Total revenues 5,661,819 5,461,931
Expenses:
Operations 3,261,523 3,352,271
Depreciation and amortization 1,603,414 1,593,099
Interest and fees paid 301,554 420,396
Total expenses 5,166,491 5,365,766
Increase (decrease) in net position before
transfers and capital contributions 495,328 96,165
Increase (decrease) in net position 495,328 96,165
Net position, fuly 1 23,529,079 23,432,914
Net position, June 30 § 24,024,407 $ 23,529,079

Business-type activities: Business-type activities increased the Authority’s net position by $495,328. Key element of this
increase is as follows:

@® Increase in revenues.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority's investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2020, totals
$43,177,245 (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets include buildings, land, equipment, vehicles, and water
system improvements,

Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority’'s Capital Assets

{net of depreciation)
Figure 4
2020 2019
Land $ 882,053 $ 882,053
Buildings 247829 257,722
Equipment 331,239 246,677
Vehicles 45,894 27,428
Plant & distribution system 41,670,230 41,460,255
Construction in progress - -
Total $ 43,177,245  § 42,874,135

Additional information on the Authority’s capital assets can be found in the notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

NB1 - 21



item NB1

m and Analysis
¢ Bfar Whter and Sewer Authority

Long-term Debt. As of June 30, 2020, the Authority had total bonded debt outstanding of $21,131,383. The Authority also
has new loan with New Hanover County in the amount of $915,347. The changes in long-term debt for the year ended June
30, 2020 was as follows:

Revenue Bonds

Figure 5
2020 2019
Revenue bonds $ 21,131,383 $ 22,821,495
Direct Placement
[nstallment Agreement 915,347 -
Total $ 22,046,730 §$ 22,821,49

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

® The adopted budget for fiscal year 2020-2021 illustrates an increase in customer revenues at the Kings Bluff
Raw Water Pump Station as confirmed by 2019-2020 year end budget amendment and customer projections.
The raw water rate will continue to be $0.2717 per 1,000 gallons to provide for the required debt services
through 2022.

® The Bladen Bluffs water treatment plant operated by Smithfield Farmland, Inc. will centinue to experience
increased costs as it enters into its 8th year of operations but those costs are offset 100% by revenues received
including all debt service.

Requests for Information

This report is designed to provide an overview of the Authority’s finances for those with an interest in this area. Questions
concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional information should be directed to Don
Betz, Executive Director, Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority, 1107 New Pointe Blvd,, Suite 17, Leland, NC 28451.
You can also call (910)383-1919, or visit our website at www.lcfwasa.org for more information.

NB1 - 22



item NBA1
Exhibit A

ra I t Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority

Statement of Fund Net Position

June 30, 2020
Major Enterprise
ASSETS Fund
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,533,264
Accounts receivable, customers (net) 483,316
Accounts receivable, other 67,220
Total current assets 3,083,800
Non-current assets:
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress 882,053
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 42,295,192
Total capital assets 43,177,245
Total assets 46,261,045
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension Deferrals 32,380
Charge on refunding 9,208
Total deferred outflows of resources 41,588
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 213,085
Compensated absences payable 2,300
Current portion of long-term debt 1,769,940
Total current liabilities 1,985,325
Non-current liabilities:
Compensated absences payable e
Net pension liability 16,112
Non-current portion of long-term debt 20,276,789
Total non-current liabilities 20,292,501
Total liabilities 22,278,226
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension Deferrals -
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 21,130,516
Unrestricted 2,893,891
Total net position $ 24,024,407

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



tem NB1

raft

Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Fund Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Major Enterprise
OPERATING REVENUES Fund
Charges for services $ 4,336,315
Other operating revenue 1,329
Total operating revenues 4,337,644
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations and administration 3,261,523
Depreciation and amortization 1,603,414
Total operating expenses 4,864,937
Operating income (loss) (527,293)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings 8,482
Insurance Claim Proceeds 13,292
Treated water supply agreement (Smithfield Farmland) 987,627
Federal tax subsidy 8,826
Contributed capital 284,885
Interest and fees paid (301,554)
Other non-operating revenues (expenses) 21,064
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 1,022,621
Income (loss) before transfers and capital contributions 495,328
Change in net position 495,328
Net position, beginning 23,529,079
Net position, ending $ 24,024,407

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
10

NB1 - 24



draft

Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority

Statements of Cash Flows
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

item NB1

Exhibit C

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash paid for goods and services
Cash paid to employees for services
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Acquisition of capital assets and construction
Principal paid on bonds and notes payable
Insurance Claim Proceeds
Contributed capital
Treated water supply agreement (Smithfield Farmland)
Loan proceeds
Other non-operating revenues
Interest and fees paid on bonds and notes
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments
Net cash provided
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents:

Beginning of year, July 1
End of year, June 30

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Major Enterprise

Fund

4,337,644
(3.255,103)

(281,435)
801,106

(1,902,851)

(1,690,113)
13,292
284,885
987,627
915,347
29,890

(301,554)
{1,663,478)

8,482
(853.890)

3,387,154
2,533,264

11

NB1 - 25



draft

Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority

Statements of Cash Flows

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Reconciliation of operating income (loss} to net cash
provided {used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization of bond refunding costs
{Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
Increase {decrease) in accounts payable & accrued liabilities
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows
of resources for pensions
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows
of resources for pensions

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

$

(527,293)

1,599,741
3,673
(94,186)
(182,380)
(1,443)

3,085

91

1,328,399

801,106

item NB1

Exhibit C

12

NB1- 26



draft

Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority

Lower Cape Fear WSA's Propertionate Share of Net Pension Liabllity (Asset)

Required Supplementary Information
Last Seven Fiscal Years*

Local Government Employees’ Retirement System

item NB1

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Authority’s proportion of the net pension liability [asset)
(%) 0.00059% 0.00074% 0.00086%: 0.00098% 0.00100% 0.0011% 0.0012%
Authority's proportion of the net pension liability (assot)
(3} $ 16112 § 17555 § 1313 § 20,799 § 4,623 (6548) 3 14465
Authority’s covered-employee payroll $ 160,576 § 156534 § 153122 § 149387 § 145429 145650  § 138,599
Autharity’s proportionate share of the net pension liabilhity
[asset} as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 10.03% 11.21% 8.58% 13.92% 318% [ 4.49%) 10.44%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability** 90.86% 91.63% 94.18% 91.47% 98.09% 102.64% 94 35%
* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ending june 30
** This will be the same percentage for all participant employers in the LGERS plan.

13

NB1 - 27



draft

Contractually required contribution

Contributions in relation to the contractually
required contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Authority’s covered-employee payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll

Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority
Lower Cape Fear WSA's Contributions
Required Supplementary Information

Last Seven Fiscal Years

Local Government Employees’ Retirement System

ltem NB1

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
$ 12770 § 13,344 $ 12554 $ 11744 § 10,547 H 10,820 5 10,820
12,770 13,344 12,554 11,744 10,547 10,820 10,820
$ $ - S - 3 - % - 5 - 5 :
$ 133855 § 160,576 $ 156534 $ 153122 $ 149,387 § 145429 $ 145650
9.54%, 831% 8.02% 7.6T% 7.06% 7.44%, 7.43%

NB1- 28



item NB1

d I a I t Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

L. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Autharity [the "Authority”) conform to generally accepted
accounting principles as applicable to governments. The Authority does not have any discretely presented component units.
The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies:

A.  Reporting Entity

The Authority is a public authority created under applicable laws of the State of North Carolina and has constructed a pipeline
system that provides raw water to counties, adjacent public utility authorities, and industrial customers in southeastern North
Carolina. The Authority's current customer mix is comprised as follows:

Customers with the ability to purchase raw water at June 30, 2020:
2 County Governments
3 Industries

1 Government Utility Authority

The Authority is not considered to be a joint venture under generally accepted accounting principles since the customers do not
retain an ongoing financial interest {i.e., an equity interest in either assets or liabilities) or responsibility. It is considered a
jointly governed organization.

Under the Enabling Acts, the Authority is authorized, among other things, to: (a) acquire, lease, construct, reconstruct, improve,
extend, enlarge, equip, maintain, and operate water and sewer systems located within the service area of the Authority's
membership; (b) issue revenue bonds of the Authority to pay the cost of such acquisition, construction, reconstruction,
improvement, extension, enlargement, or equipment; and (c] fix, revise, charge, and collect rates, fees, and charges for the use of
and for the services and facilities furnished by any water and sewer system operated by the Authority. The Authority cannot levy
ad valorem taxes.

The Authority is governed by a board of fourteen members, each of who is appointed for a term of three years by the respective
governing bodies of each of the Authority members. Each constituent member of the Authority appoints and is represented by
two Board members with the exception of Brunswick County, which appoints four members.

B. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statements : The business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. All
activities of the Authority are considered business-type activities.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the Autherity’s funds. Proprietary fund
operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated with the principal activity of the
fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating
revenues, such as contributions and investment earnings, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities. The
Authority has one fund category - proprietary funds.

15

NB1 - 29



item NB1

draft-

Enterprise Fund. Enterprise funds are used to account for those operations that (a) are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including
depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis, be financed or recovered primarily
through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that the periodic determination of revenues earned,
expenses incurred and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, pubiic policy, management contrel, accountability
or other purposes. The Authority operates as a singular enterprise fund, the Water and Sewer Fund. The Water and Sewer Fund
(the operating fund) is consolidated with the Renewal and Replacement Fund, Right of Way Fund, System Development Fund,
Enterprise Capital Project Fund, and Bladen Bluff Capital Project Fund.

The Enterprise Fund is considered a major fund for the year ending June 30, 2020.
C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the Authority are maintained during the year using the modified
accrual basis of accounting.

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements. The proprietary fund financial statements are accounted for on a
flow of economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange
transactions, in which the Authority gives [or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange,
include grants, donations, and similar items. Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all
eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Authority enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and
services. The Authority also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting
new customers to the water system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported
as non-operating revenues and expenses. The Authority recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to
recover the cost of connecting new customers to the water system.

D. Budgetary Data

The Authority's budgets are adopted as required by North Carolina General Statutes. An annual budget ordinance is adopted for
the Operating Fund, Renewal and Replacement Fund, Right of Way Fund, System Development Charge Fund, Enterprise Capital
Project Fund, and Bladen Bluffs Capital Project Fund. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. Appropriations under
project ordinances for the enterprise construction project sub funds lapse at the completion of the project. All budgets are
prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting which is consistent with the accounting system used to record
transactions. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the functional level for al) annually budgeted funds and the
object level for the multi-year funds. During the year, an amendment was made to the original budget, the effects of which were
not material. The budget ordinance must be adopted by June 30 of the fiscal year or the governing board must adopt an interim
budget that covers the time until the annual ordinance can be adopted.

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows or Resources, and Fund Equity

1. Deposits and Investments

All deposits of the Authority are made in board-designated official depositories and are secured as required by State law [G.S.
159-31]. The Authority may designate, as an official depository, any bank or savings association whose principal office is located
in North Carolina. Also, the Authority may establish time deposit accounts such as NOW and Super-NOW accounts, money
market accounts, and certificates of deposit.

16

NB1 - 30



item NB1

d ra ttatements
e S -30(c)} authorizes the Authority to invest in obligations of the United States or obligations fully guaranteed

both as to principal and interest by the United States; cbligations of the State of North Carolina; bonds and notes of any North
Carolina local government or public authority; obligations of certain non-guaranteed federal agencies; certain high quality issues
of commercial paper and bankers' acceptances, and the Naorth Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT). The Authority's
investments are reported at fair value. Non-participating interest earning investment contracts are accounted for at cost. The
NCCMT Government Portfolio, a SEC-registered (2a-7) money market mutual fund, is measured at fair value. The NCCMT-Term
Portfolio is a bond fund, has no rating and is measured at fair value. As of June 30, 2020, the Term Portfolio has a duration of .15
years. Because the NCCMT Government and Term Portfolios have a weighted average maturity of less than 90 days, they are
presented as an investment with a maturity of less than 6 months.

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Authority considers all highly liquid investments with maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash and cash
equivalents.

3. Allowances for Doubtful Accounts
All receivables at June 30, 2020 are considered collectible.

4. Capital Assets

Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than a certain cost and an
estimated useful life in excess of two years. Minimum capitalization costs are of individual items of more than $5,000. Donated
capital assets received prior to June 30, 2015 are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Donated capital
assets received after June 30, 2015 are recorded at acquisition value. All other purchased or constructed capital assets are
reported at cost or estimated historical cost. General infrastructure assets acquired prior to July 1, 2003, consist of the water
system assets that were acquired or that received substantial improvements subsequent to July 1, 1980, and are reported at
estimated historical cost using deflated replacement cost. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the
value of the asset or materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized. The Authority has elected to capitalize those interest
costs that are incurred during the construction period of general fixed assets when appropriate. Assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over estimated useful lives, which are as follows:

Years
Buildings 40
Water supply system - pipeline 40
Water supply system - equipment 25
Office equipment 16
Vehicle 5

32, Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures during the period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

6. Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

I[n addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Outflows of Resources, represents a consumption of net position
that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an expense or expenditure until then. The Authority has two
items that meets this criterion, one is the expense for the refunding of water bonds and the other is pension deferrals for the
2020 fiscal year. In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Inflows of Resources, represents an
acquisition of net position that applies te a future period and so will not be recognized as revenue until then. The Authority has
one item that meet the criterion for this category - pension deferrals.

Z,_Long-Term Obligations

17

NB1 - 31



Item NB1

d r tatements
ovilrn -wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and

other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable business-type activities or proprietary fund type
statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-
line method that approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premiums
or discount. Bond issuance costs, except for prepaid insurance costs, are expensed in the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

8. Compensated Absences

The vacation policy of the Authority provides for the accumulation of up to thirty days earned vacation leave with such leave
being fully vested when earned. For the Authority's proprietary funds, an expense and a liability for compensated leave and the
salary-related payments are recorded as the leave is earned. The Authority has assumed a first-in, first-out method of using
accumulated compensated time. The portion of that time that is estimated to be used in the next fiscal year has been designated
as a current liability. The Autherity’s sick leave policy grants twelve days per year to full-time employees which can accumulate
without limit, but which do not vest. As such, accumulated and non-vested sick leave is not provided in these financial
statements.

9, Net Position/Fund Balances
Net Pasiti

Met position in proprietary fund financial statements is classified as net investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted.
Restricted net position represent constraints on resources that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors,
or laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by law through state statute.

Fund Balances

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five classifications designed to disclose the hierarchy
of constraints placed on how fund balance can be spent.

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:

Nonspendable Fund Balance - This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in
spendable form or {b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted Fund Balance - This classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific purposes externally imposed by
creditors or imposed by law.

Committed Fund Balance - portion of fund balance that can conly be used for specific purposes imposed by majority vote by
quorum of the Authority's governing body (highest level of decision-making authority). The governing body can, by adoption of
an ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance
remains in place until a similar action is taken (the adoption of another ordinance) to remave or revise the limitation.

Assigned Fund Balance - portion of fund balance that the Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority intends to use for specific
purposes.

Unassigned Fund Balance - portion of fund balance that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes or
other funds.

18

NB1 - 32



item NB1

d ra-ﬂ o
-Sharing Plans

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement
System (LGERS) and additions to/deductions from LGERS' fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they
are reported by LGERS. For this purpose, plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are
due. The Authority's employer contributions are recognized when due and the Authority has a legal requirement to provide the
contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of LGERS. Investments
are reported at fair value.

II. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

A Significant Violati CFi Related Legal and C | Provisi
LN I {th North Carolina G s

None.

2. Contractual Vielations

None.

None.
[tl. Detail Notes on All Funds
A. Assets

1. Deposits

All the deposits of the Authority are either insured or collateralized by using one of two methods. Under the Dedicated Method,
all deposits that exceed the federal depository insurance coverage level are collateralized with securities held by the Autherity's
agents in these units' names. Under the Pooling Method, which is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with
securities held by the State Treasurer's agent in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary
capacity for the Authority, these deposits are considered to be held by the Authority's agents in entity's name. The amount of the
pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for non-interest bearing deposits and the actual current balance
for interest-bearing deposits. Depositories using the Pooling Method repoert to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled
collateral covering uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm this information with the Authority or the escrow
agent. Because of the inability to measure the exact amounts of collateral pledged for the Authority under the Pooling Method,
the potential exists for under-collateralization, and this risk may increase in periods of high cash flows. However, the State
Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict standards of financial stability for each depository that collateralizes public deposits
under the Pooling Method. The Authority has no formal pelicy regarding custodial credit risk for deposits, but relies on the State
Treasurer to enforce standards of minimum capitalization for all pooling method financial institutions and to monitor them for
compliance. The Authority complies with the provisions of G.S. 159-31 when designating official depositories and verifying that
deposits are properly secured.

At June 30, 2020, the Authority's deposits had a carrying value of $2,533,264 and a bank balance of $2,569,707. Of the bank

balance $1,345,051 as covered by federal depository insurance. ‘The remaining balance was covered by the collateral held under
he Pooling Method.

2. Receivables - Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

19

NB1 - 33



item NB1

r : tatements
ivilibles t historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts.

Uncollectible accounts are deemed to be immaterial for the Authority, in light of historic collectability.

3. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the Authority for the year ended June 30, 2020, was as follows:
Beginning Ending
Balances increases Decreases Balances
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 882,053 $ - $ - § 882,053
Total capital assets not being depreciated 882,053 - - 882,053
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 395,734 - - 395,734
Vehicles 160,007 34,486 194,493
Equipment 348,952 96,000 - 444,952
Plant and distribution system 68,076,702 1,772,365 - 69,849,067
Total capital assets being depreciated 68,981,395 1,902,851 - 70,884,246
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 138,012 9,893 . 147,905
Vehicles 132,579 16,020 . 148,599
Equipment 102,275 11,438 - 113,713
Plant and distribution system 26,616,447 1,562,390 . 28,178,837
Total accumulated depreciation 26989313 $ 1599741 $ - 28,589,054
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 41,992,082 42,295,192
Business-type activity capital assets, net $ 42874135 $ 43,177,245
B. Liabiliti
1. Payables

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities reported on the Statement of Net Position at June 30, 2020 were as follows:

Business-Type

Activities
Accounts and vouchers ¥ 209,276
Accrued interest payable 3,809
Total accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 213,085

20

NB1 - 34



tem NB1

Local Government Employees’ Retirement System

Plan Description. The Authority is a participating employer in the statewide Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System
(LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of North Carolina. LGERS
membership is comprised of general employees and local law enforcement officers (LEOs) of participating local governmental
entities. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina
General Assembly. Management of the plan is vested in the LGERS Authority of Trustees, which consists of 13 members - nine
appointed by the Governor, one appointed by the State Senate, one appointed by the State House of Representatives, and the
State Treasurer and State Superintendent, who serve as ex-officic members. The Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement
System is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Repert (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State's CAFR
includes financial statements and required supplementary information for LGERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the
Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, by calling {919) 981-5454, or at
WWW.0SC.NC.20V.

Benefits Provided LGERS provides retirement and survivor benefits. Retirement benefits are determined as 1.85% of the
member’s average final compensation times the member's years of creditable service. A member's average final compensation is
calculated as the average of a member’s four highest consecutive years of compensation. Plan members are eligible to retire with
full retirement benefits at age 65 with five years of creditable service, at age 60 with 25 years of creditable service, or at any age
with 30 years of creditable service. Plan members are eligible to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 20 years of
creditable service or at age 60 with five years of creditable service. Surviver benefits are available to eligible beneficiaries of
members who die while in active service or within 180 days of their last day of service and who have either completed 20 years
of creditable service regardless of age or have completed five years of service and have reached age 60. Eligible beneficiaries
may elect to receive a monthly Surviver's Alternate Benefit for life or a return of the member's contributions. The plan does not
provide for automatic post-retirement benefit increases. Increases are contingent upon actuarial gains of the plan.

Contributions. Contribution provisions are established by General Statute 128-30 and may be amended only by the North
Carolina General Assembly. The Authority employees are required to contribute 6% of their compensation. Employer
contributions are actuarially determined and set annually by the LGERS Board of Trustees. The Authority’s contractually
required contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2020, was 9.54% for general employees, actuarially determined as an
amount that, when combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees
during the year. Contributions to the pension plan from the Authority were $12,770 for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Refunds of Contributions - Authority employees who have terminated service as a contributing member of LGERS, may file an
application for a refund of their contributions. By state law, refunds to members with at least five years of service include 4%
interest. State law requires a 60 day waiting period after service termination before the refund may be paid. The acceptance of a
refund payment cancels the individual's right to employer contributions or any other benefit provided by LGERS.

21

NB1- 35



item NB1

d ra tatements
bil , Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to

Pensions

At June 30, 2020, the Authority reported an liability of $16,112 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net
pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019. The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2018, The total pension liability was then rolled forward to the
measurement date of June 30, 2019 utilizing update procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions. The Authority’s
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Authority's long-term share of future payroll covered by
the pension plan, relative to the projected future payroll covered by the pension pian of ail participating LGERS employers,
actuarially determined. At June 30, 2019, the Authority’s proportion was 0.00059%, which was a decrease of 0.00015% from its
proportion measured as of June 30, 2018.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Authority recognized pension expense of $14,321. At June 30, 2020, the Authority reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Qutflows of
Resources Deferred Inflows of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience  $ 2,759 § >
Change in assumptions 2,626 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments 393 e
Changes in proportion and differences between

Authority's contributions and proportionate share of

contributions 13,832 -

Authority's contributions subsequent to the

measurement date 12,770 &
Total $ 32,380 § -

$12,770 reported as deferred cutflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Authority contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as an increase of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2020. Other amounts
reported as deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended June 30
2021 8,040
2022 5,067
2023 4,511
2024 1,992
2025 -
Thereafter -
3w

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 3.0 percent
Salary Increases 3.50 to 8.10 percent, including inflation and productivity factor
Investment rate of return 7.00 percent, net of position plan investment expense, including inflation

The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, gender, employee group (i.e. general, law enforcement officer) and
health status (i.e. disabled and healthy). The current mortality rates are based on published tables and based on studies that
cover significant portions of the U.S. population. The healthy meortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality
improvements,

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study
for the period January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2014.

22

NB1 - 36



item NB1

d ra fttatemems
adEhoc"$@LA amounts are not considered to be substantively automatic and are therefore not included in the

measurement.

The projected long-term investment returns and inflation assumptions are developed through review of current and historical
capital markets data, sell-side investment research, consultant whitepapers, and historical performance of investment strategies.
Fixed income return projections reflect current yields across the U.S. Treasury yield curve and market expectations of forward
yields projected and interpolated for multiple tenors and over multiple year horizons. Global public equity return projections
are established through analysis of the equity risk premium and the fixed income return projections. Other asset categories and
strategies’ return projections reflect the foregoing and historical data analysis. These projections are combined to produce the
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage
and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class as of June 30, 2019 are summarized in the following table:

Target Long-Term Expected Real Rate of
Asset Class Allocation Return
Fixed [ncome 29.0% 1.4%
Global Equity 42.0% 5.3%
Real Estate 8.0% 4.3%
Alternatives 8.0% 8.9%
Credit 7.0% 6.0%
Inflation Protection 6.0% 4.0%
Total 100%

The information above is based on 30 year expectations developed with the consulting actuary for the 2018 asset, liability, and
investment policy study for the North Carolina Retirement Systems, including LGERS. The long-term nominal rates of return
underlying the real rates of return are arithmetic annualized figures. The real rates of return are calculated from nominal rates
by multiplicatively subtracting a long-term inflation assumption of 3.00%. All rates of return and inflation are annualized.

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current contribution rate and
that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on these
assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of the current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents
the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.00 percent, as well as what
the Authority's proportionate share of the net pension asset or net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.00 percent) or one percentage point higher (8.00 percent) than the current

rate:
1 % Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%)
Authority's proportionate share
of the net pensicn liability $36,852 $16,112 ($1,126)

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina.

23

NB1 - 37



item NB1

r tatements
tal rement Income Plan

Plan Description. The Authority contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan {Plan), a defined contribution pension
plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The Plan provides retirement benefits to
personnel employed by the Authority. Article 5 of G.S. Chapter 135 assigns the authority to establish and amend certain benefit
provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Plan is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
for the State of North Carolina. The State's CAFR includes the pension trust fund financial statements for the Internal Revenue
code Section 401(k) Plan that includes the Plan. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller,
1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410 or by calling (919)981-5454.

Funding Policy. Article 12E of G.S. Chapter 143 requires the Authority to contribute each month an amount equal to three
percent of each participant's salary, and all amounts contributed are vested immediately. Also, the participants may make
voluntary contributions to the Plan, Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2020 were $15,755 which consisted of $3,612
from the Authority and $12,143 from employees.

Other Employment Benefit

The Authority has also elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit Plan for members of the Local
Government Employees' Retirement System (Death Benefit Plan), a multiple-employer, State-administered, cost-sharing plan
funded on a one year term cost basis. The beneficiaries of those employees who die in active service after one year of
contributing membership in the System, or who die within 180 days after retirement or termination of service and have at least
one year of contributing membership service in the System at the time of death are eligible for death benefits. Lump-sum death
benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal to the employee's 12 highest months’ salary in a row during the 24 months prior to
the employee’s death, but the benefit may not exceed $50,000 or be less than $25,000. Because all death benefit payments are
made from the Death Benefit Plan and not by the Authority, the Authority does not determine the number of eligible participants.
The Authority has no liability beyond the payment of menthly contributions. The contributions to the Death Benefit Plan cannot
be separated between the post-employment benefit amount and the other benefit amount. The Authority considers these
contributions to be immaterial,

3. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources at year-end is comprised of the following:

Amount
Pension deferrals $ 32,380
Charge on bond refunding 9,208
Total $ 41,588

Deferred inflows of resources at year-end is comprised of the following:

Pension deferrals 3 5

4. Risk Management

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Authority carries commercial coverage for all risks of loss, to include
business auto ($3,000,000 limit), real and personal property ($26,397,125 limit}, general liability ($3,000,000 per occurrence},
and worker's compensation {statutory). There have been no subsequent reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year, and
settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. The Authority does not carry flood insurance. [n
accordance with G.5. 159-29 the Authority's employees that have access to more than $100 or more at any given time of the
Authority's funds are performance bonded through a commercial surety bond. The Finance Officer is individually bonded for
$50.000. The remaining employees that have access to funds are bonded under a blanket bond for $50,000. In addition, the
Authority carries Government Crime coverage for the loss of or damage to money, securities, and other property resulting
directly from theft, forgery, or alteration committed by an employee inside and cutside the premises ($100.000 per cccurrence).

5. Claims, Judgments and Contingent Liabilities

24

NB1 - 38



ltem NB1

r f tatements
30mp02 e Authority was not a defendant to any lawsuits.

6. Long Term Obligations

The Authority has no authority to issue general obligation debt under its enabling legislation. The Authority is able to issue
revenue bonds in such amounts as may be financially feasible without statutory limits. The following is the composition of long-
term debt as of June 30, 2020.

a. Notes Payable

In March 2019, the Authority entered into a three year direct placement loan of
$1,506,438 with New Hanover County for the a relocation capital project under US HWY
42 1. The contract requires principal payments beginning in the fiscal year of 2020 at an
annual interest rate of 2 percent. At June 30, 2020, the Authority had received $915,347.
Balance at June 30, 2020 is $915,347. Matures in May 2023. $ 915,347

b. Revenue Bonds

$24,665,000 Special Facility Revenue Bonds, Series 2010, issued for the construction of a
surface water treatment plant; due in annual installments ranging from $455,000 1o
$2,050,000 through December 1, 2024; interest payable monthly at a variable rate. All
payments are made directly by Smithfield Farmland Corporation, although the liability is
held in the name of The Authority. 15,940,000

$5,507,451, 2012 Enterprise System Refunding bonds; due in annual installments
ranging from $515,344 to $601,444 through May 2022; interest payable semi-annually at

1.95%. 1,191,383
Total long-term debt $ 22,046,730
Current portion 1,769,940

20,276,790

¢ inG | Lone-Term Liabiliti

The changes in the long-term debt for the year ending June 30, 2020 are as follows:

Balance Balance Current
7/1/2019 Additions Retirements 6/30/2020 Portion
Revenue bonds $ 22,821,495 3§ - $ 1690112 $ 21,131,383 $ 1,379,940
Direct Placement Installment
agreements - 915,347 - 915,347 390,000
Net pension liability 17,555 - 1,443 16,112 .
Compensated leave 13,179 - 10,879 2,300 2,300
Total $ 22,852,229 §% 915347 $ 1,702,434 $ 22,065142 § 1,772,240
25

NB1 - 39



item NB1

d ra o
reipay rMllits of the revenue bonds for the years ending after June 30, 2020 are as follows:

Business-Type Activities

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest
2021 1,769,940 2,368,631
2022 1,841,442 2,258,728
2023 1,045347 2,202,260
2024 970,000 2,028,600
2025 1,035,000 1,908,300
2026-2030 6,400,000 7,414,200
2031-2035 8,985,000 2,842,500
Total $ 22,046,729 $ 21,023,219

d. Special Facility R Bond

In March 2010, the Authority issued $24,665,000 in special facility revenue bonds, per the Treated Water Supply Agreement with
the Smithfield Farmland Corporation (the Agreement) dated December 18, 2009, for the construction of a water intake at Bladen
Bluff on the Cape Fear River, a four million gallons per day treatment plant and necessary pipelines and appurtenant facilities.
Per the Agreement, Smithfield Farmland Corporation will make payments directly te the bond agent in the amount of any
principal, interest, or additional bond expenses, when due and payable. Smithfield Farmland Corporation will continue to make
such payments so long as Smithfield Farmland Corporation is the sole user of the Bladen Bluffs Project. As per the Agreement,
Smithfield Farmland Corporation has provided a letter of credit through Rabo Bank sufficient for issuance of the Bonds. The
Authority has recognize the value of these principal and interest payment as a nonoperating revenue called Treated Water
Supply Agreement (Smithfield Farmland). This revenue is offset by interest expense and principal payments decreasing the
balance of the outstanding bonds.

e. Revenue Bond Covenaots

The Authority has been in compliance with the covenants as to rates, fees, rentals, and charges in Section 5 of the Bond Orders,
authorizing the issuance of the 2012 Enterprise System Revenue Refunding bonds, the 2010 Combined Enterprise Revenue
Bonds, and the 2010 Special Facility Revenue Bonds, since the adoption of each bond order. Section 5.01 Bond Orders of the
2012 Enterprise System Revenue Refunding bonds, and 2010 Combined Enterprise Revenue Bonds, require the debt service
coverage to be no less than 110%. Section 5.01 of the Bond Order of the 2010 Special Facility Revenue Bonds, requires the debt
service coverage to be no less than 100%. The debt service coverage ratio calculation for the year ended June 30, 2020, is as

follows:

Operating revenues $ 4,337,644
Operating expenses * 3,260,248
Operating income 1,077,396
Non-operating revenues (expenses)** 1,310,884
Income available for debt service $ 2,388,280

Debt service, principal and interest paid

{Revenue bonds only) $ 1,769,940
Debt service coverage ratio 135%

*Per rate covenants, this does not include the depreciation and amortization expenses of $1,603,414.

**Per rate covenants, this does not include revenue bond interest and fees of $301,554
nor net insurance proceeds of $13,292. It includes all investment income and fees
earned from operating the system.

26

NB1 - 40



tem NB1

draft—

The Authority has pledged future water customer revenues, net of specified operating expenses, to repay $5,507,451 in 2012
Enterprise System Revenue Refunding bonds, $3,000,000 in 2010 Combined Enterprise Revenue Bond, and $24,665,000 in 2010
Special Facility Revenue Bonds. Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for water system improvements and the
construction of a surface water treatment plant. The 2012 Enterprise System Revenue Refunding Bonds, and the 2010 Combined
Enterprise Revenue Bonds, are payable solely from water customer net revenues and are payable through 2022. The total
principal and interest remaining to be paid on these bonds is $43,661,041, Principal and interest paid for the current year and
total custorner net revenues were $1,005,504 and $1,076,067 respectively. In the event that the Treated Water Supply
Agreement is not met, the Special Facility Revenue Bonds are payable from water customer net revenues through 2024. The
total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is $44,044,600. Principal and interest paid for the current year
were $3,177,200. Payments made directly by Smithfield Farmland Corporation, on behalf of The Authority, for principal and
interest for the current year were $987,627.

C. Iransactions with Related Parties and Major Customers

Brunswick County is related to the Authority as one of its members (See Note 1: Reporting Entity). The Authority currently selis
water to Brunswick County under a Fourth Amended and Restated Water Supply Agreement dated December 10, 2012, which
continues until December 31, 2030, with provisions for ten-year extensions thereafter. Water charges of $1,384,533 for the year
ended June 30, 2020 {33% of total water charges) and a customer receivable of $146,188 at June 30, 2020 are attributable to
Brunswick County.

The Authority currently sells water to the Cape Fear Public Utility Authority. Water charges of $1,041,909 for the year ended
June 30, 2020 {25%) and a customer receivable of $79,033 are attributable to the Cape Fear Public Utility Authority.

D. Summary Disclosure of Sinificant Deficiencies

The Authority has received proceeds from several federal grants. Periodic audits of these grants are required and certain costs
may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the grant agreements. Such audits could result in the refund of
grant moneys to the grantor agencies. Management believes that any required refunds will be immaterial. No provision has
been made in the accompanying financial statements for the refund of grant moneys.

E. Significant Effects of Subsequent Events

There are no subsequent events that would have a material affect on the financial statements. Subsequent events have been
analyzed through the date that the financial statements were available to be issued.

27

NB1 - 41



item NB1

Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority, North Carolina Schedule 1
Enterprise Operating Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes Fund Balance
Budget and Actunal (Non - GAAP)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

2020
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Operating revenue:
Brunswick County $ $ 1,384,533 $
Invista 55,063
Cape Fear Public Utility Authority 1,041,909
Praxair, Inc. 2,211
Pender County 158,670
Bladen Bluffs income 1,584,190
Other operating revenues 1,329
Total operating revenues 4,143,145 4,227,905 84,760
Nonoperating revenues:
Interest earnings 8,482
Treated water supply agreement (Smithfield) 987,627
Other non-operating revenues -
Total non-operating revenues 900,000 996,108 96,108
Total Revenues: 5,043,145 5,224,013 180,868
Expenditures:
Administration:
Salaries and benefits 281,435
Insurance 84,087
Office expense 58,292
Professional services 125,622
Other 67,211
Total administration 645,980 616,647 29,333
Other operating expenditures:
Kings Bluff 0&M expenses 567,465
Bladen Bluffs expenses 1,391,217
Utilities-Energy Pump Station 736,530
Capital Qutlay 130,496
Other 372
Debt service - principal 1,690,113
Debt service - interest 301,554
Total other operating expenditures 4,823,165 4,817,747 5,418
Total expenditures 5,469,145 5,434,394 34,751
Revenue over expenditures (426,000) {210,381) 215,619
28

NB1 - 42



iem NB1

Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority, North Carolina Schedule 1
Enterprise Operating Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non - GAAP)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

2020
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual {Negative)
Other financing sources (uses):
Insurance Claim Proceeds 26,000 13,292 (12,708)
Contributed capital 400,000 284,885 (115,115)
Total other financing sources (uses): 426,000 298,177 (127,823)
Revenues and other sources over
expenditures and other uses $ - 87,796 $ 87,796
Reconciliation from budgetary basis
(modified accrual) to full accrual:
Revenues over expenditures $ 87,796
Reconciling items:
Depreciation (1,599,741)
Amortization of bond refunding expense (3.673)
Principal payments on long-term debt 1,690,113
(Increase) decrease in net pension liability 1,443
Increase (decrease) in deferred outflows
of resources for pensions (3.085)
(Increase) decrease in deferred inflows
of resources for pensions 91
Capital outlay 130,496
Items from Schedules 2 through 5
Other expenses from capital projects {96,533)
Other income from capital projects 284,885
Interest earned from capital projects 3,536
Total reconciling items 407,532
Change in net position $ 495,328
29

NB1 - 43



item NB1

Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority, North Carolina
Renewal and Replacement Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual (Non - GAAP)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

2020
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual {Negative)
Nonoperating revenues:
Interest earnings $ $ 116 $
Miscellaneous -
Total non-operating revenues & 116 116
Expenditures:
Repairs and maintenance 9,718 e
Miscellaneous - -
Total expenditures 25,584 9,718 15,866
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in S e e
Transfers {out) e e e
Fund balance appropriated 25,584 - :
Total other financing sources (uses): 25,584 - (25,584)
Revenues and other sources over (under)
expenditures and other financing uses $ - (9,602) $ {(9,602)
Fund balance
Fund balance - beginning 50,285
Fund balance - ending $ 40,683

30

NB1- 44



item NB1

Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority, North Carolina
Right of Way Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual (Non - GAAP)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

2020
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual {Negative)
Non-operating revenues:
Interest earnings $ $ 893 §
Miscellaneous -
Total Revenues - 893 B93
Expenditures:
Capital outlay -
Repairs and maintenance -
Administration expenses e
Total expenditures 280,112 - 280,112
Revenues over (under) expenditures (280,112) 893 281,005
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - -
Transfers {out) - -
Fund balance appropriated 280,112 - 280,112
Total other financing sources (uses) 280,112 - (280,112}
Revenues and other sources over
expenditures and other uses $ - 893 $ 893
Fund balance
Fund balance - beginning 280,112
Fund balance - ending $ 281,005

Ky

NB1 - 45



item NB1

raft

Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority, North Carolina
System Development Charge Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual (Non - GAAP)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

2020

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Non-operating revenues:
Interest earnings $ $ - %
System contribution -
Total Revenues . - -

Expenditures:
Capital outlay -
Repairs and maintenance 423,631
Administration expenses -
Total expenditures 438,088 423,631 14,457

Revenues over (under) expenditures (438,088) (423,631) 14,457

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - -
Transfers (out) -
Fund balance appropriated 438,088 .

Total other financing sources (uses} 438,088

(438,088)

Revenues and other sources over
expenditures and other uses $ S (423,631) $_(423,631)

Fund balance

Fund balance - beginning 423,645
Fund balance - ending $ 14

32

NB1- 46



item NB1

raft

Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority, North Carolina
Enterprise Capital Project Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual (Non - GAAP)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

2020
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual {Negative)
Non-operating revenues:
Grant revenue $ $ 284,885 %
Interest income 2,527
Miscellaneous revenues -
Total Revenues - 287,412 287,412
Expenditures:
Capital outlay -
Repairs and Maintenance 1,435,177
Administration expenses 372
Total expenditures 2,628,612 1,435,549 1,193,063
Revenues over (under) expenditures (2,628,612) (1,148,137) (905,651)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in -
Transfers (out) - -
Proceeds from debt issuance - 915,347
Fund balance appropriated 2,628,612 . (2,628,612)
Total other financing sources (uses) 2,628,612 915,347 {1,713,265)
Revenues and other sources over
expenditures and other uses $ - (232,790) $_ (232,790)
Fund balance
Fund balance - beginning 1,026,773
Fund balance - ending $ 793,983

33

NB1 - 47



Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A.
4024 Oleander Drive Suite 3

Wilmington, North Carolina 28403
Telephone (910) 791-4872

Fax (910) 395-4872

Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And On Compliance and Other
Matters Based On An Audit Of Financial Statements Performed In Accordance With
Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Chairman of the Board

and Members of the Board of Directors
Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority
Leland, North Carolina

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the
accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority, as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprises the Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Lower Cape
Fear Water and Sewer Authority’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control)
to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose
of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority's internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Commission’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

item NB1

NB1- 48



ftem NB1

draft

Our consideration of the internal control was for limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer
Authority’s financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

Thompoon, Price, Secott, Adame & (Po.. PrH

Wilmington, North Carolina
October 28, 2020

NB1- 49



Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority
Leland, North Carolina
Schedule of Findings and Responses
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Section I. Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial S

Type of report auditor issued on whether the financial statements audited were prepared in
accordance to GAAP: Unmodified

Internal contrel over financial reporting:
¢  Material weakness(es) identified? yes _X no
o Significant Deficiency(s) identified? yes _X no

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? yes _X .no

36

item NB1

NB1 - 50



item NB1

draft

Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority
Leland, North Carolina
Schedule of Findings and Responses
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

37

NB1 - 51



ltem NB1

d I a I t Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer Authority

Leland, North Carolina
Corrective Action Plan
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

38

NB1 - 52



NEW BUSINESS (NB'Z) Lower Cape Fear Water & Sewer

Authority

AGENDA ITEM

To: CHAIRMAN MILLIKEN AND BOARD MEMBERS

From: TIM H. HOLLOMAN, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Date: 12/14/2020

Re: Election of Authority’s Board of Directors Officers for the Term of January 1,

2021 until December 31, 2021

Reviewed and Approved as to form: MATTHEW A. NICHOLS, AUTHORITY ATTORNEY

In accordance with Article Hll, Section 1. of the Lower Cape Fear Water and Sewer
Authority’'s Bylaws, new officers are to be elected for the term of January 1, 2021 to
December 31, 2021. Provided is a list of current Board Officers complies with the
requirements set forth in the referenced Article and Section.

Action Requested: Election of proposed Board Officers for the term on January 1, 2021
to December 31, 2021



Chairmanship Rotation Schedule
Brunswick County
Columbus County
City of Wilmington
Pender County
New Hanover County

Bladen County

Lower Cape Fear Water & Sewer Authority

CURRENT

Board Officers, January 1 - December 31, 2020

Chairman Al Milliken
Brunswick County

Vice-Chairman Trent Burroughs
Columbus County

Secretary Charlie Rivenbark
City of Wilmington
Treasurer Norwood Blanchard
Pender County
Assistant Treasurer Vacant

New Hanover County

W ot o Pt Pt Pt st o Poat Pt Poat P P Pug Pt Fnd Fnd P (g Pndd Pnd Pogd Pt Bng Fond gt Pog fndt Pt Bt gt Pogt Pk Pngd P Pngd Poct Poct Pogd Podd §

Lower Cape Fear Water & Sewer Authority

PROPOSED
Board Officers, January 1 - December 31, 2021

Chairman Al Leonard
Columbus County

Vice-Chairman Charlie Rivenbark
City of Wilmington
Secretary Norwood Blanchard
Pender County
Treasurer Harry Knight
New Hanover County
Assistant Treasurer Patrick DeVane
Bladen County

ftem NB2

NB2- 1



Executive Director’s Report
(EDR) Sewer Authority

AGENDA ITEM

Tor CHAIRMAN MILLIKEN AND BOARD MEMBERS

Lower Cape Fear Water &

From: TIMH. HOLLOMAN, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Date:  December 14, 2020

Re: Executive Director's Report

EDR1 - Comments on Customers’ Water Usage and Raw Water Revenue for
Month Ending November, 2020

EDR2 - Proposed Budget Calendar

Action Requested: Forinformation purposes



Item EDR1

Lower Cape Fear

Regular Board Meeting

December 14, 2020

s:.m_ Network Name = Password =




700,000,000

600,000,000

500,000,000

400,000,000

300,000,000

200,000,000

100,000,000

0

ftem EDR1

- Monthly Water Usage

Comparison of Actual to

Jul Aug Sep




- Monthly Water Usage

Comparison of Actual to

700,000,000

600,000,000

500,000,000

400,000,000

300,000,000

200,000,000

100,000,000

item EDR1

Jul

|

Aug

Sep

Oct MNov




80,000,000

70,000,000

60,000,000

50,000,000

40,000,000

30,000,000

20,000,000

10,000,000

- Monthly Water Usage

Comparison of Actual to

item EDR1

lul

Aug

Sep




$350,000
$300,000
$250,000
$200,000
$150,000
$100,000

$50,000

50

tem EDR1

FY 20/21 - Monthly Revenue
of Actual to Projected

- al mumm 234

‘r %NwN_ 939
Smw@m B;wdd

Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May

=s=Actual Revenue -=-Projected Revenue




item EDR1

F 20/21 - Monthly Revenue
of Actual to Projected

Monthly Over/Under
Month Projected Nonthaciua) Budget Per
Revnue
Revenue Month

Total to Date
Over/Under Budget

286,455.18
282,861.32
250,903.77
245,202.77
192,545.63

267,576.45
256,231.05
255,983.66
237,938.65
222,507.61

184,257.82 -
175,330.64 -
162,438.53 :
186,673.77 .
218,693.18 .
264,178.52 a
265,862.86 -

2,715,404.00 1,240,237.42







PROPOSED BUDGET CALENDER 2021

January 2021

January 11,2021

February 1, 2021

February 8, 2021

March 8, 2021

April 12, 2021

May 10, 2021

June 14, 2021

Meet with Brunswick County Staff and Bladen
Bluff Staff to get input on the next five years’
Capital Improvement Needs.

Regular Monthly meeting and Planning and
Budget Retreat 8:00 am to 11:00 am

Send correspondence to customers requesting
estimate of FY 21 Usage

Present Capital Improvement needs for the next
five years to the Finance Committee

Meet with Finance Committed to review current
revenues and expenditures.

Review Capital Improvement Plan to the Board
for the coming five years.

Meet with Finance Committee to review
proposed FY 2021-22 Budget for
recommendation to the Board

Present draft budget to the Board.
Hold Public Hearing on Proposed Budget
Adopt proposed FY 2021-22 Annual Budget

item EDR2

EDR2 - 1



Closed Session (CS-1) Lower Cape Fear Water & Sewer

Authority

AGENDA ITEM

To CHAIRMAN MILLIKEN AND BOARD MEMBERS

From: TIM H. HOLLOMAN, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Date: 12/14/2020

Re: Closed Session in accordance with North Carolina G.S. 143-318.11(a)(3)

Attorney Client Privilege.

Reviewed and Approved as to form: MATTHEW A. NICHOLS, AUTHORITY ATTORNEY

A Closed Session is required in accordance with NCGS 143-318.11(a)(3) to preserve the
Authority’s attorney client privilege.

A motion is made by tointoa
closed session in accordance with North Carolina General Statute Section
143-318.11(a)(3).

The motion is seconded by
Closed Session

A motion is made by to
return to open session,

This motion is seconded by




